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BOARD OF EDUCATION
P.O. Box 147
Berkeley Heights, Union County
New Jersey (07922

February 7, 2025

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Berkeley Heights School District
County of Union, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The annual comprehensive financial report of the Berkeley Heights School District for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy
of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures,
rests with the management of the Berkeley Heights Board of Education. To the best of our
knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects
and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the various funds and account groups of the District. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District’s financial activities
have been included.

The annual comprehensive financial report is presented in four sections: introductory,
financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal
letter, the District’s organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial
section includes the basic financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor’s report
thereon. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information,
generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District is required to undergo an annual
single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1996 and the
related OMB Uniform Guidance and State Treasury Circular Letter OMB 15-08.
Information related to this single audit, including the auditor’s report on the internal control
structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and
recommendations, are included in the single audit section of the report.

1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

The Berkeley Heights School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria
adopted by the GASB as established by NCGA Statement No. 3. All funds and account
groups of the District are included in this report. The Berkeley Heights Board of Education
and all its schools constitute the District’s reporting entity.




1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES (CONTINUED):

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-K
through 12. These services include regular as well as special education for qualifying
students. The District completed the 2023-2024 fiscal year with an enrollment of 2,395
students, which is 49 students less than the previous year’s enrollment. The average daily
enroliment is a compilation of enrollment and attendance data for the entire year. The
statistic is different than the enrollment figure for the end of the year which is the actual
number of students enrolled. The following chart details the changes in the student average
daily enrollment of the District over the last ten years.

AVERAGE DAILY ENROLLMENT

Fiscal Student Percent

Year Enrollment Change

2023-24 2,395 (.020%)
2022-23 2,444 (.011%)
2021-22 2,472 (.008%)
2020-21 2,494 (2.54%)
2019-20 2,559 (0.51%)
2018-19 2,572 (1.91%)
2017-18 2,622 (2.89%)
2016-17 2.700 1.54%

2015-16 2,659 (0.26%)
2014-15 2,666 (1.11%)
2013-14 2,696 {1.06%)

2) ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The Township of Berkeley Heights is a mature suburban town situated approximately 30
miles west of New York City with easy access to major airports and highways. The
Township is 6.2 sq. miles and has a population of approximately 13,000 residents. Berkeley
Heights is a stable, affluent municipality.

The landscape of the township is slated to change significantly over the next several years.
The township recently finished construction on a new municipal complex and new
residential and commercial projects have been approved and some new construction has
already begun. Five residential complexes are being planned which will result in an influx
of students into the district.

Berkeley Heights continues to be a desirable location because of its school system, the ease
of commuting into New York, as well as easy access to major highways, and the suburban
feel of the town.

However, the district has faced many challenges: including managing the cost and
availability of: 1) student transportation, 2) substitute teachers, 3) student and teacher
technology needs and 4) improvements to infrastructure.



Despite these new and evolving challenges, the Berkeley Heights Board of Education
continues to be fiscally responsible when developing its budget. The Board is cognizant of
the impact the school tax levy has upon tax payers and seeks to strike a balance between
maintaining its high quality educational services in a safe and welcoming environment and
its fiscal accountability to the community.

3) MAJOR INITIATIVES

In order to determine student’s strengths and areas in need of growth, the District purchased
Linklt! as an assessment management and data analytics tool. The LinkIt! technology
platform is a suite of integrated web applications that consists of three core elements:

« An assessment authoring platform & item banking tool;
» A Dashboard style reporting platform with over ten distinctive reporting modules.

Linkit! was purchased in response to both the District’s and teachers’ need for a tool to
easily manage and analyze data. It gives teachers and administrators access to valuable
student data in a simple to use interface. LinkIt! allows teachers to easily identify a
student’s strengths and weaknesses, differentiate instruction, and provide tailored
interventions.

The administrative team revamped K-5 education with the help of teaching staff. The
District has updated all curricula for K-5 and moved more than 50 teachers to create two
early learning centers and two elementary schools.

The District has updated its Five-Year Strategic Plan to include another “wheel” which is
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion. The District created a “Director of DEI” and has been
working diligently to make sure that all students feel included, inspired, and empowered.

The District wants to continue the DEI initiative to focus on and integrate social and
emotional learning for all students. Berkeley Heights Public Schools are committed to the
development of the whole child and recognizes the importance of equipping students with
the skills necessary to understand and manage emotions; set and achieve positive goals;
feel and show empathy for others; and make responsible decisions.

The Berkeley Heights and Mountainside communities value education and the District
continues to evaluate its educational program and make improvements to the educational
experience. The curriculum has been revised to reflect new state standards and to keep pace
with community expectations regarding student achievement. The STEAM curriculum
continues to be expanded, and opportunities for students to participate in STEAM activities
have increased both inside the classroom and as a part of co-curricular programming.

Advanced placement courses are offered in 25 subject areas and student enrollment in these
programs continues to increase. The class of 2023 had 41 AP Scholars, 23 AP Scholars
with Honors, and 67 AP Scholars with Distinction. Three students received the AP
Capstone Diploma and | was awarded the AP Seminar and Research Certificate. The
average SAT score was 601 for evidence-based reading and writing and 597 for



mathematics. The super score for SAT was 612 for evidence-based reading and writing
and a 609 for mathematics, totaling 1221. The class of 2023 had 18 National Merit
commended students.

The district continues to upgrade its technology infrastructure, replacing outdated access
points, switches, and servers. Additionally, the district has been implementing
improvements to the instructional technology, with all students now using touchscreen
Chromebooks and the introduction of interactive displays in classrooms.

4) INTERNAL ACCOUNT CONTROLS

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the district are protected from loss,
theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate account data are compiled to allow for the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived:
and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure
is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the
adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state
financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with
applicable laws and regulations.

5). BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary confrols. The
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions
embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality.
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund and special revenue fund.
The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

Budget Analysis Reports are reviewed regularly to identify any anticipated deficits to any
expense or revenue account. Transfers between accounts are approved at monthly
meetings to ensure that accounts are not over-expended.

An Encumbrance account system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on
a line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as
reappropriation of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be
reappropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance on June 30, 2024.



6) ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS AND REPORTS:

The District’s account records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as
promulgated by the Governmental Account Standards Board (GASB). The accounting
system of the District is organized on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds
and account groups are explained in “Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 1.

7y DEBT ADMINISTRATION:

Under provisions of New Jersey statutes, school districts may not incur indebtedness
greater than 4% of the average equalized valuation of taxable property. On June 30, 2024,
the District’s outstanding debt issues are well below the legal debt margin. The District
continues to be committed to providing the debt rating agencies and all other interested
parties with annual audited financial statements and other pertinent credit information
relevant tour outstanding securities.

8) CASH MANAGEMENT:

Bank balances are insured up to $250,000 in the aggregate by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation for each bank. In addition, the State of New Jersey Unit Deposit Protection
Act insures the remaining balance of funds on deposit in registered depositories.

The Berkeley Heights Board of Education maintains an on line computerized accounting
system to record all financial transactions. During the fiscal year, financial reports are
prepared monthly and are distributed to the Board of Education Members. The reports
detail the monthly transaction and detail the appropriation balance.

9) RISK. MANAGEMENT:

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general liability,
automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property
and contents, and fidelity bonds. Recently coverage for cyber liability and pollution were
added to our range of coverage.

10) OTHER INFORMATION:

a) Independent Audit - State statues require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Suplee, Clooney
& Co., was selected by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state
statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of
1996 and the related OMB Uniform Guidance and State Treasury Circular Letter OMB 15-
08. The auditor’s report on the general purpose financial statements and combining and
individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report.
The auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit
section of this report.

11) ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the members
of the Berkeley Heights School Board for their concern in providing fiscal accountability
to the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and thereby contributing their full support



to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this
report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of

our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfuﬂy subnntted

PR

F}y"\%j),«‘-/ ‘/

Robert Nixon {
Acting Supermtend’e{

School Buness Administrator/
Board Seoretary



BOARD OF EDUCATION TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS

BERKELEY HEIGHTS, NEW JERSEY

ROSTER OF OFFICIALS
JUNE 30, 2024
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION TERM ENDS
Gale Bradford, President 2025
Dipti Khanna, Vice President 2025
Sai Akiri 2026
Thomas Foregger 2024
Natasha Joly 2026
Kelly Hufnagel 2024
Pamela Stanley 2024
Jordan Hyman (Mountainside Representative) 2024

OTHER OFFICIALS
Robert Nixon, Acting Superintendent
Anthony Juskiewicz, Board Secretary/School Business Administrator

Harold Kessler, Treasurer



mfarrell
Rectangle


BOARD OF EDUCATION

TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS

CONSULTANTS AND ADVISORS

ARCHITECT

Solutions Architecture
81 Clay Street
Newark, New Jersey 07104

AUDIT FIRM

Suplee, Clooney and Company
308 E. Broad Street
Westficld, New Jersey 07090

ATTORNEY

Cleary Giacobbe Alfieri Jacobs, LLC.
955 State Route 34
Suite 200
Matawan, NJ 07747

Porzio, Bromberg & Newman PC
100 South Gate Parkway
Morristown, New Jersey 07962

SEPCIAL EDUCATION COUNSEL

Chaudry Law.
33 Wood Ave
Woodbridge Township, NJ 08830

OFFICIAL DEPOSITORY

Citizens Bank
441 Springfield Avenue
Berkeley Heights, NJ 07922




BOARD OF EDUCATION

TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS

CONSULTANTS AND ADVISORS (CONTINUED)

HEALTH INSURANCE BROKER

Alliant Employee Benefits
1301 Dove Street
Suite 200
Newport Beach, CA

DENTAL INSURANCE BROKER

Centric Benefits Consulting
219 South Street
Suite 103
New Providence, NJ 07924

PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE BROKER

Clyde Paul Insurance Agency
47 Maple St, Suite #301
Summit, NJ 07901




Ssho.wm povg cs,huwaﬁ Brispposny
]
5.3 sieVg woddag Fan) Svs/
KBS Y [RROEHHISU =15 Loddng
JORUIRIO0Y asuBEA P2 eiaads /sl w.w [rop—— s ABapouyaL] e Bulssunen; | pes sosy m_ umcﬂﬁumw_
skl SURIpOISHD pea Apras PIYD Pz ieads oS
| L
aosjaredng
Sauarag (seds Sapsinn sfediaipg
e oty |o3a et emsesy soades | | [vosmadns wesgssy
15 poddng _ =g
eaddng SRG
ARHO ISBUING Junpusiupedng
Fe ¥ aH
P syoford jepudg | | somnas ppads aoveRpIGRD BURTSHNOD | {ov g senaisdng
pue sBuping s Lp-paedupg G2 SRtk
0 Jasasdng 10 01%1G PryCCre ASejeuysoy 1o soand Ienay
JO S
— 11 3 ¥
UojuRAIRIU}
unpERIsY pUe
J0YeALUNPY whnining jo atmeinins:
Aoiarss pinoy ssauEng [OOYIS WP Wa:!..xvmaho
Juspssy WIPUTURIENE
oSy
L sjooyss ju :

Juapuopupudng

ugjiesnpy

30 purcg

BreH hayyreg

NOILVZINVYDYO 40 319V1L 2202-120C
ST00HDIS 21N18Nd SLHDIFH AFTINYIY

10



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



FINANCIAL SECTION




SupPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 Kast Broad Street, Westfield, New dersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Berkeley Heights School District
County of Union

Berkeley Heights, New Jersey 07922

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities and each major fund of the Berkeley Heights School District, in the County of
Union, State of New Jersey (the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which coliectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements
as listed in the tabie of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each
major fund of the District as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, audit requirements prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of
Education, State of New Jersey, the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (the "Uniform Guidance”) the audit requirements of State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08
“Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.” and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards and provisions are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities,
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obfained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
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SurLEE, CLooNEY & COMPANY LLC

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financiai
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including
any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards, the Uniform Guidance, the State of New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08 and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards the Uniform
Guidance, the State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 and Government Auditing Standards, we:

« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

s |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

» Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

12



SurLEE, CLoONEY & COMPANY LLC

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management's Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information in Exhibit C-1 through C-
3, the schedules related to accounting and reporting for pensions in Exhibit L-1 through L-4 and the
schedules related to accounting and reporting for postretirement benefits other than pensions (OPEB)
in Exhibits M-1 and M-2 are presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowiedge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
coliectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary
information schedules and data such as the combining statements and individual fund financial
statements, and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance, as
listed in the table of contents, as required by the Uniform Guidance, New Jersey’'s OMB Circular 15-
08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid,” and the State of
New Jersey, Department of Education, Division of Finance, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund
financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

13



SurLEE, CLooNky & COMPANY LLC

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information
and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materiaily
misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of
the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 7, 2025 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and

' Do e ol

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNEAMTS

Aol 1w AN

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

February 7, 2025
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of the Township of Berkeley Heights School District’s (the District)
financial performance provides an overall review of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2024. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the District's
financial performance as a whole; readers should also review the basic financial statements and
notes to enhance their understanding of the District’s financial performance.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary
Information specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement
No. 34 — Basic Financial Statements-Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for the State and
Local Governments. Certain comparative information between the current fiscal year (2023-
2024) and the prior fiscal year (2022-2023) is required to be presented in the MD&A.

Financial Highlights

Key financial highlights for 2024 are as follows:

» The state continues to delay the final two state aid payments into the subsequent budget
year. Therefore, the final two payments were not reflected on the GAAP basis financial
statements for the 2023/2024 school year. The amount of the deferred state aid
payments, which were received in July 2024, is $294,289.00.

¢« General revenues accounied for $48,618,158.10 or 71% of all revenues. Program
specific revenues in the form of charges for services and operating/capital grants and
contributions accounted for $20,338,947.26 or 29% of all revenues.

« The District had $65,890,741.29 in expenses; $20,338,947.26 of these expenses were
offset by program specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General
revenues of $48,618,158.10 were adequate to provide for these programs.

Using this Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements.
These statements are organized so the reader can understand the District as a financial whole,
an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look
at specific financial activities.
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

The Statement of Net Position and Stafement of Activities provide information about the
activities of the whole District, presenting both an aggregate view of the District’s finances and a
longer-term view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detalil.
For governmental funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as
well as what remains for future spending. The fund financial statements also look at the
District’s most significant funds. In the case of the district, the General Fund is by far the most
significant fund.

Reporting the District as a Whole
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the District to provide
programs and activities, the view of the District as a whole looks at all financial transactions and
asks the question, “How did we do financially during 20247". The Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities answers this question. These statements include ali assets and
liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-
sector businesses. This basis of accounting takes info account, all of the current year's
revenues and expenses regardiess of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the District's net position and changes in those assets. This
change in net position is important because it tells the reader that, for the school district as a
whole, the financial position of the District has improved or diminished. The causes of this
change may be the result of many factors, some financial and some not. Non-financial factors
include current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility condition, required
educational programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the District is divided into two
distinct kinds of activities:

« Government Activities — All of the District’'s programs and services are reported here
including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities,
student transportation and extracurricular activities.

» Business-Type Activities — This service is provided on a charge for goods or services

basis to recover all the expenses of the goods or services provided. The Food Service
program is reported a business activity.
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL. DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

Reporting the District’'s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial reports provide detailed information about the District’s funds. The District uses
many funds to account for a multitude of financial transactions. The District’s governmental
funds are the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Debt Service
Fund.

Governmental Funds

The District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows
into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in future
years. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to
cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District's
general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps the reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that
can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The relationship (or
differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Enterprise Fund

The enterprise fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities. These
statements closely resembie financial statements of a private sector business entity.

The School District as a Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the District as a whole.
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

Table 1 provides a comparative summary of the District's net position for 2024 and 2023.

Table 1
Net Position
2024 2023
Assets
Current and Other Assets $16,960,734.65 $15,575,178.43
Capital Assets 56,530,964.19 56,775,506.11
Total Assets 73,491,698.84 72,350,684.54
Deferred Outflows
Related to Pensions 1,6398,410.80 2,421,121.00
Total Deferred Quiflows 1,639,410.80 2,421,121.00
Liabilities
Other Liabilities 4,305,316.34 3,802,234 .02
Long-Term Liabilities 15,020,628.85 17,133,437.50
Total Liabilities 19,325,945.19 21,035,671.52
Deferred Inflows
Related to L.eases 1,196,260.98 1,268,761.65
Related to Pensions 1,294,693.00 1,996,448.00
Total Deferred inflows 2,490,953.98 3,265,209.65
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 52,769,027.99 52,342.614.58
Non-Spendable 81,183.10 56,746.35
Restricted 9,651,061.95 7,973,992.69
Unirestricted{Deficit) {9,187 ,062.57) {9,902,429.25)
Total Net Position $53,314,210.47 $50,470,924.37

The District's combined net position was $53,314,210.47 on June 30, 2024. The District's
investment in capital assets is shown net of any related debt used to acquire those assets.
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

UNAUDITED

Table 2 shows changes in net position for fiscal years 2024 and 2023.

Table 2

Changes in Net Position

Revenues
Pragram Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Grants and Entittements
Other
Total Revenues

Program Expenses

2024

$7.889,054.51
12,439,656.85
10,235.90

46,987,165.00
732,754.00
808,239.10

[a)
jon]
N
[5

$8,050,156.47
13,346,077.78
318,423.18

46,083,270.00
637,581.00
504,804.96

68,957,105.36

68,040.313.39

39,108,231.96

10,126,285.93
1,683,938.11
2.5569,866.90
1,194,184.03
5,781,402.21
2,154,638.10
1,1156,720.67
1,713,239.50

65,437,507 41

Instruction 38,510,860.64
Support Services:
Student and Instruction Related 10,624,078.38
General Administration 1,646,603.80
School Administration 2,492,786.18
Central Services/ Adm. Of Technology 1,294,405.87
Maintenance of Facilities 6,050,304 .53
Student Transportation 2,372,334.10
Business Type Activities 1,139,248.19
Other 1,760,119.59
Total Expenses 65,890,741.29
Increase/ (Decrease) in Net Position $3,066,364.07

$3,502,805.98
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

Government Activities

Property taxes made up 69 percent of revenues for governmental activities in the District. There
was a $903,895.00 increase in property taxes or 1.96 percent from the prior year. The District's
total revenues were $67,648,640.49 for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Instruction comprises 59 percent of district expenses. Support services make up 38 percent of
the district expenses and other services and expenses make up 3 percent.

Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the District's business-type activities were comprised of charges for services and
contributions in the food service program. The Board of Education continues to work to increase
sales in the program and reduce operating costs. The Board has opted out of the State
sponsored Child Nutrition Program which limits the price of lunches and restricts types and
sizes of offerings. The cafeterias located in each school building offer flexibility in food selection,
menu offerings and pricing that meets the needs of the students. The following are some of our
maijor business type activity results.

« Business type revenues and transfers exceeded expenses by $169,216.68.
« Revenues consist of $1,150,092.97 in operating revenue from charges for services.

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges offsetting those
costs.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost of services. That is, it identifies the cost
of these services supported by tax revenue and unrestricted State entitiements.

Instruction

Support Services:
Students and instruction Related
General Administration, School
& Central Administration
Maintenance of Facilities
Student Transportation
Cther
Business-Type Activities

Total Net Cost of Services

Table 3
Net Cost of Services

Total Cost of

Services 2024

Total Cost of

Services 2023

Net Cost of

Services 2024

Net Cost of

Services 2023

$38,510,860.64

39,108,231.96

$22,822,123.94

22,499,632.66

10,624,078.38 10,126,285.93 8,909,352.03 8,410,019.21
5,433,795.86 5,437,989.04 4,775,644.21 4,724,685.78
6,050,304.53 5,781402.21 5,643,404.10 5,039,687.71
2,372,334.10 2,154,638.10 1,671,414.80 1,352,653.60
1,760,119.50 1,713,239.51 1,740,699.74 1,713,239.51
1,139,2458.19 1,115,720.67 {10,844.78) {17,068.48)
$65,890,741.29 $65,437,507.42 $45,551,794.04 $43,722,849.99

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of students and the
interaction between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.
other schools for regular and special education students is also inciuded here.

Tuition paid 1o

Students and instruction related inciude the activities involved with assisting staff with the
content and process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration, school administration, and central services include expenses associated
with administrative and financial management of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings and

equipment in an effective operating condition.

Student transportation includes activities with the conveyance of special education students to
and from school, school activities and athletic events, as provided by state law.

“Other” includes unallocated depreciation and interest on long term debt.

Business-Type activities include activities in the food service program.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

The School District’s Funds

All governmental funds (i.e., general fund, special revenue fund, and debt service fund
presented in the fund-based statements) are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Total revenues amounted to $74,097,672.38 and expenditures were
$72,889,886.67.

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of
this report, the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management,
which required significant budget adjustments to contend with state aid reductions. The
following schedules present a summary of the revenues of the governmental funds for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2024, and the amount and percentage of increase or decrease in relation
to prior year revenues.

Percent
Increase(Decrease) Increase
Revenues Amount Percent of Total from FY 2023 {Decrease}
Local Sources $54,673,968.22 73.79% $1,146,408.56 4.04%
State Sources 18,534,342.06 25.00% 447,194.07 1.76%
Federal Sources 889,362.10 1.20% (540,466.49) -36.55%
Total $74,097,672.38 100.00% $1,053,226.14 1.91%

The following schedule represents a summary of general fund, special revenue fund, and debt
service fund expenditures, excluding instaliment purchases, for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2024, and the percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior year amounts.

Percent
Increase{Decreass) Increase
Expenditures Amount Percent of Total from FY 2023 {Decrease)
Current:

Instruction $26,279,917.27 36.05% {$135,660.74) -0.52%
Support Services 44 .419,572.37 60.94% 2,065,509.91 4.44%
Capital Qutlay 476,147.03 0.65% {270,887.02) ~131.97%
Debt Service 1,714,250.00 2.36% (69,250.00) -4.21%
Total $72,889,886.67 100.00% $1,589,712.15 2.95%

24



TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

General Fund Budgeting Highilights

The District’'s budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The most
significant budgeted fund is the General Fund.

Over the course of the year, the Board of Education, when appropriate, approved budget
transfers to keep accounts in balance. Transfers to the budget were made to accurately reflect
expenditures according to state guidelines and prevent over-expenditures in specific line-item
accounts. These revisions bear notation:

o TPAF, which is the State's contribution fo the pension fund, post-retirement benefits and the
employer's share of FICA costs, is neither a revenue or expenditure item in the budget;
however, the School District is required to present this information in the revenue and
expenditure sections of the report.

+ The district increased the approved budget by $149,934.00 by using excess extraordinary
aid received in the prior year and also decreased the approved budget by returning
$1,702,620.00 of unused Capital Reserve appropriations.

Capital Assets
At the end of the fiscal year 2024, the District had a net of $56,530,964.19 invested in land,

building and building improvements, and machinery and equipment. Table 4 shows fiscal year
2024 balances compared to 2023.

Table 4
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)
2024 2023

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net: of Depreciation

Land $14,043,000.00 $14,043,000.00

Construction in Progress $838,274.55 §722,085.55

Land improvements 1,440,833.44 1,502,953.91

Building and Building Improvements 38,823,485.38 40,180,669.76

Machinery and Equipment 1,265,621.55 1,188,047 .52
Total Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net 56,411,214.92 57,636,756.74
Business Type Activities Capital Assets, Net:of Depreciation

Machinery and Equipment 118,749.27 134,537.76
Totat Business Type Activities Capital Assets, Net: 119,748.27 134,537.76
Total Capital Assets, Net $56,530,964.19 $57,771,294.50

Qverall net capital assets decreased by $1,240,330.31 from fiscal year 2023 to fiscal year 2024,
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2024, the District had $15,020,628.85 of outstanding long-term liabilities. Of this
amount, $998,298.06 is for compensated absences; $31,017.91 is for SBITAs; $774,118.88 for
installment purchases leases, $10,222,194.00 of net pension liability and $2,995,000.00 of
serial bonds for school construction.

For the Future

The Berkeley Heights School District has and continues to utilize sound accounting practices
during a period of uncertainty in State funding coupled with high inflation. The state-imposed
cap on property tax increases of 2% has affected how the District budgets and plans for current
and future expenses.

The District provides an excellent educational experience for our students and provides ample
support for the continuation of implementation of the New Jersey Student Learning Standards
across content areas and professional learning opportunities for staff members charged with
crafting, supporting, and providing lessons aligned to the standards.

District-wide, continued efforts have been made to support the whole student and maximize
opportunities for growth and achievement for all students. This includes the development that
supports addressing the Social Emotional needs of our students. From the community precepts
at the elementary level to the advisory period in the middle school, and the Wellness Room at
the high school, the District is committed to providing students with the skills and strategies that
will allow them to flourish, feel safe, and feel included in our schools and classrooms.

Other highlights in our elementary programs include our gifted and talented HEIGHTS (Having
Each Individual Gain Higher-ievel Thinking Skills} program for all students, the development of
additional STEAM units in grades K-5, the WIN (What | Need) period, and our ongoing
commitment to the Berkeley Heights Tiered System of Supports (BHTSS). Our middle school
and high school programs have expanded elective opportunities that are supported by student
interests and engage our students as active-problem solvers who wili be prepared for colleges
and careers.

The school district will continue to evaluate its progress toward the goals of the Strategic Plan.
The Strategic Plan is a living document and will be reviewed and adjusted to meet identified
student needs as well as the changing curriculum standards and skills required to be successful
in the current environment.
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FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

Regularly evaluating its buildings and grounds, the District identifies areas of concern and
makes improvements annually. The District utilizes capital reserves for yearly budgeted capital
projects and is considering a referendum in the near future to address larger, district-wide
infrastructure needs.

The Berkeley Heights School District regularly monitors costs and looks for efficiencies,
including opportunities to share services, and engages in bulk purchasing to achieve economies
of scale. The District also shares a number of services with the Township which benefit resident
faxpayers,

The District is proud and grateful for the community support it receives and is committed to
striking a fair balance between the local taxpayer and the educational necessities of its
students. The Berkeley Heights Board of Education has committed itself to sound financial
practices and plans to continue its prudent fiscal management to meet the challenges of the
future,

Contacting the School District’s Financial Management Office

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with
a general overview of the School District’s finances and to show the School District's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need
additional information contact: Anthony Juskiewicz, Business Administrator/Board Secretary,
Berkeley Heights Board of Education, 345 Plainfield Avenue, Berkeley Heights, NJ 07922.
Also, please visit our website to learn more about our School District.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements provide a financial overview of
the District's operations. These financial statements present the financial position and
operating results of all funds as of June 30, 2024
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of changes in net position display information about the District. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall district, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the District.
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
inveniory
Intangible Assets, net of amortization
Capital assets:

Non Depreciable

Depreciable - Net

Total Assets

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Related to pension
Total deferred outfiow of resources

LIABILITIES:

Accounis payable
Payable to state government
Other payables
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest payable
Pavyroll deductions and withholdings payable
Unemployment compensation ¢laims payabile
Nancurrent Babilities:

Net pansion liability

Due within one ysar

Due beyond one year

Totai lizhilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Leases
Related to pension
Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION:

Net Investment in capital assets
Non-spendable:

Leases
Restricted for:

Special revenue

Capital projects

Other purposes
Unrestricted(deficit)

Total net position{deficit)

The accompanying Notes 0 the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT OF NET PGSITION

JUNE 30. 2024

EXHIBIT “A-1"

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIMITIES JOTAL
$14,208,019.81 $5.266.25 $14,214,316.06
2,692,906.18 2,682,986.18
21,804.63 2180463
31,617.78 31,617.78
14,881,274.55 14,881,274.55
41,529,840.37 119,749.27 41,649,689.64
73,278,870.45 212,828.39 73,491,698.84
1,639,410.80 1,639,410.80
1,639,410.80 1,639,410.80
1,343,936.15 23,563.88 1.367,500.03
2,429.14 2,429.14
1,228,282.00 1,228,282.00
541,037.34 43,881.97 684,918.31
49,500.69 49,500.69
943,035.58 943,035.58
29.649.59 29,649.59
10,222,194.00 10,222,184.00
1,912,284.67 1.812,284.67
2,886,150.18 2,886,150.18
19,258,499.34 §7,445.85 19,325,845.19
1,196,260.98 1,186,260.98
1,294,693.00 1,294,693.00
2,450,953.98 2,490,853.98
52,649,278.72 118,749.27 52,769,027.99
81,183.10 81,183.10
321,392.25 321,382.25
3,878,683.32 3,978,983.32
5,353,853.82 5,353,853.82
{9,215.863.28) 25633.27 {9,180,230.01)
$53,168,827.93 $145,382.54 $63,314,210.47
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MAJOR FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual Fund financial statements and schedules present more detailed information for the individual
fund in a format that segregates information by fund type.
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ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with fiscal agents
Accounts receivable:
Federal

State

Local

Accrued Interest

Leases

Total assetis

LIABILITIES | DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liability for insurance claims
Payrall deductions payable
Unemployment claims payable
Interfund payable
Infergovernmental payables:
State
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
{eases

Fund balances:
Non-spendabie:
Leases
Restricted for:
Capitat reserve account
Mainienance reserve account
Excess surplus
Excess surplus designated for
subsequent years expenditures
Scholarships
Student Activities
Unemployment
Debt service
Assigned:
Year-end encumbrances
Designated for subsequert years expenditures
Linassigned

Total fund balances

Total llabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances

EXHIBIT "B-17

SHEET#1
TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024
SPECIAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND EUND EUND FUNDS
$ 13,816,905.24 § 38493151 § 0638 § 14,201,837.13
7.182.68 7.182.68
468,966.72 488,966.72
768,184.24 9,600.00 777.184.24
169,401.14 169,401.14
842.57 842.57
1,276,601.51 1,276,601.51
$ 16,039,117.38 % 862,868.23 % 038 § 18,902,0615.99
380,631.35 1,200.00 381,831.35
1,228,282.00 1,228,282.00
943,035.58 943,035.58
29,649.59 29,649.59
65,978.24 65,978.24
2,428.14 242914
110,343.18 537,876.84 648,220.02
2,757,819.94 541,505.98 3,200,425.92
1,196,260.98 1,186,260.98
81,183.10 81,183,10
3,978,983.32 3,978,883.32
1,012,871.86 1,012,871.86
2,443,675.44 2,443675.44
1,453,021.69 1,463,021.69
18,565.91 18,555.91
302,836.34 302,836.34
444,284 .83 444,284,835
0.38 0.38
1,027,767.73 1,027,767.73
746,978.31 746,978.31
896,170.18 886,170.18
12,084,936.46 321,382.25 0.38 12,406,329.09
3 16,039,117.38 $ 862,898.23 § 038 § 16,902,015.99

The accompanying Notes to the §i§ancial Staternents are an integral part of this statement.



TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2024

Total Fund Balances (Brought Forward)

Amourits Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Net Position {A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Cost of Assets
Accumulated Depreciation

Intangible assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, and other related
amounts that are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reparted as liabilities in the funds.

Serial bonds payable
Net Pension Liability

Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements Payable

Instaliment purchases
Less: unexpended installment proceeds
Compensated absences payable

Deferred Outflows and Infiows of resources are applicable
to future periods and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Pensions;
Deferred Qutfiows
Pension related

Deferred inflows:

Pension related
Certain liabilities are not due and payabie in the current period
and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Accounts payable - pension refated
Accrued Interest Payable

Net Position of Governmental Activities

95,127,242.42
(38,716,027.50)

{2,995,000.00)
(10,222,194.00)
(31,017.91)
(774,118.88)
7,182.68
(998,298.06)

{962,104.80)
(49,500.69)

$

$

EXHIBIT "B-1"
SHEET #2

12,406,329.09

56,411,214.92

31,617.78

(15,013,446.17}

1,639,410.80

{1,294,693.00)

(1,011,605.49)

53,168,827.93

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES iN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

REVENUES:
Local sources:

Local tax levy
Interest earned on maint. reserve funds
Interest earned on capital reserve funds
Transporatation Fees from individuals
Tuition
Miscellaneous

Totat - local sources

State sources
Federal sources

Tetal revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current expense:
Regular instruction
Special instruction
Other Instruction

Support services.
Tuition
Student & instruction related services
General administrative services
School administrative services
Central services
Administrative information technology
Piant operations and maintenance
Student transportation
Unallocated benefits
Special schools

Debt Service:
Principal
Inferest

Capilal outlay

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (undes) expanditures

Other financing sources (Uses).
Transfers to cover deficit (Enterprise fund)

instaliment Purchases (non-budgeted)

Total other financing sources

Met change in fund balances
Fund balances, July 1,

Fund balances, June 30,

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

EXHIBIT "B-2"

SPECIAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUNDS

45,846,446.00 § $ 1,140,719.00 46,987,165.00
12,434 46 12,434.46
38,387.15 36,387.15
112,600.00 112,600.00
5,297,985.15 6,297,985.15
849,417.49 377,978.97 1,227,356 46
53,155,270.25 377,978.97 1,140,719.00 54,673,968.22
17,014,452.20 46,358.86 573,534.00 18,534,342.08
889,362.10 889,362.10

74,069,722.45 1,313,608.93 1,714,260.00 74,007 672.38
17,966,599.20 371,393.68 18,337,992.88
5,304,649.95 583,000.62 5,977 .650.57
1,964,273.82 1,964,273 B2
1,658,737.14 1,658,737.14
7,287,128.26 312,898.59 7,600,026.85
1,346,109.96 1,346,109.98
1,953,268.55 1,953,266.55
555,708.79 555,708.79
620,491.41 620,441.41
4,075,508.37 11,773.84 4,687,372.01
2,220,443.62 2,220,443.62
24,288,746.04 24,288,746.04
79,668.00 79,668.00
1,490,000.00 1,490,000.00

224,250.00 224,250,00

681,735.91 10,235,90 £91,971.81
70,102,159.02 1,289,302.43 1,714,250.00 73,105,711.45
957,563,43 24,397.50 991,860,093
{158,371.50) {158,371.90)
215,824.78 215,824.78
57 452.88 57,452.88
1025,016.31 24,397.50 1,049,413.81
11,056,920.15 § 296,894.75 0.38 11,356,015.28
12,084,93646 § 32139225 % 0.38 12,406,329.09

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds {from B-2}

Amounts reported for governmental activilies in the statement
of activities {A-2} are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outiays exceeded
depreciation in the pericd

Depreciation expense $ {1,760,487.80)
Capital outlays 691,971.81
Less: Capital outlays not capitafized (157,025.83)

Proceeds from debt issuss are a financing source in governmental funds. They are
not revenue in the statement of activities; issuing debt increases long-term liabiities
in the statement of net position.

Installment purchase proceeds

Amortization Expense:
Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements

Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liahilities in the statement of net position and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Payment of installment purchase principal 615,646.46
Payment of subscription based information technology arrangements 13,579.72
Payment of bond principat 1,450,060.00

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardless of when due.
In goveramental funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued interest is an increase in the
reconciliation.

Decrease in accrued interes! payable

District pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds when made.
However, they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position because
the reported net pension liability is measured a year before the District's report date. Pension expensge,
which is the change in the net pension liability adjusted for changes in deferred cutflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, is Teported in the Statement of Activities.

District pension confributions 943,240.00

Less: Pension expense {48,269.00)

In the statement of activities, certain expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations} are
measured by the amounts earmed during the year. In governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial rescurces used (paid). When the earned
amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation {-); when the
paid amount exceeds the earned amount the difference is an addition {0 the reconcifiation (+).

Decrease in compensated absences payable

Change in net position of governmental activities

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

$

$

EXHIBIT "B-3"

1,049,413.81

{1,225,541.82}

(215,824.78)

(12,979.85)

2,119,226.18

24,626.39

894,971.60

26325645

2.857,147.38



OTHER FUNDS
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EXHIBIT "B-4"

TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOQL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOOD SERVICE

ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,296.25
Accotints receivable:
Interfunds 65,978.24
Inventories 21,804.63
Total current assets 83,079.12

Noncurrent assets:

Furniture, machinery and equipment 347,754 91
Less accumulated depreciation (228,005.64)
Total noncurrent assets 118,749.27
Total assels 212,828.39
LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 23,563.88
Unearned revenue 43,881.97
Total current liabilities 67,445 85
Total Habilities 67,445.85
NET POSITION:
Net Investment in capital assels 119,749.27
Unrestricted 25,633.27
Total net position $ 145,382.54

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services;
Daily sales

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales
Salaries
Employee benefits and taxes
Other purchased services
Supplies and materials
Miscellaneous
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Net income before contributions and transfers

Other financing uses:
Transfers in

Change in net position
Total net position - beginning {(deficit)

Total net position - ending

EXHIBIT "B-5"

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES
ENTERPRISE FUND
FOOD SERVICE

$ 1,150,082.97

1,150,092.97

530,548.82
316,585.92
94,590.53
82,307.75
55,618.74
44,798.84
14,788.49

1,136,248.19

10,844.78

158,371.90

169,216.68

(23,834.14)

3 145,382 54

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Cash flows from operating activities;

Receipts from customers

Payments to employees and employee benefits
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers from/{to) other funds

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities:
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1,

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30,

Reconciliation of aperating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconciling operating income (loss) to

net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation and net amortization

Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable
increase/(decrease) in unearned revenue
{increase)/decrease in inventories

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

EXHIBIT "B-68"

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES
ENTERPRISE FUND
FOOD SERVICE

$  1,149,588.86
(316,585.92)
(776,705.72)

56,297.22

{56,267 .86)

(56,267.86)

29.36

5,266.89

$ 5,296.25

$ 10,844.78

14,788.49

23,563.88
{604.11)
7,604.18

45,452.44

3 56,297.22

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Township of Berkeley Heights School District
(District) have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The more significant of the Board's accounting policies are described
below.

Reporting Entity

The District is a Type If District located in Union County, New Jersey. The District
is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an
educational institution. The District is governed by a seven member board and
one sending district member and is responsible for the fiscal control of the District.
A superintendent is appoinied by the Board and is responsible for the
administrative control of the District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity are
set forth in Statement No. 39 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
entitted “Defermining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units”
(GASB 39) as codified in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

Organizations that are legally separate, tax-exempt entities and that meet all of the
following criteria should be discreetly presenied as component units. These
criteria are:

1. The economic resources received or held by the separate
organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of
the primary government.

2. The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or
has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic
resources of the organization.

3. The economic resources received or held by an individual
organization that the specific primary government, or its component
units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, are
significant to that primary government.

The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which the
Board exercises operating control. The operations of the District include one high
school, one middle school and four elementary schools. There were no additional
entities required to be included in the reporting entity under the criteria as
described above, in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the District is not
includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation

The District's basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements,
including a Statement of Net Positions and a Statement of Activities, and fund
financial statements which provide a more detailed leveli of financial information,

District-Wide Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall District. Eliminations have been made
to minimize the doubie-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish
generally between the governmental and business-type activity of the District.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-exchange fransactions. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial condition of the governmental
and business-type activity of the District at fiscal year-end. The Statement of
Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for the business-type activity of the District and for each function of the District’s
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated
with a program or function and, therefore, are ciearly identifiable to a particular
function. Program revenues inciude (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of
goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirement of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all
faxes, are presented as generally revenues. The comparison of direct expenses
with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function
or business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the
District.

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the District segregates
transactions related to certain District functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The fund
financial statements provide information about the District’s funds. Separate
statements for each fund category — governmental and proprietary - are presented.
The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New
Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in accordance
with the option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE believes that
the presentation of all funds as major is important for public interest and to promote
consistency among district financial reporting models.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the District. It
is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted
for in another fund. Inciuded are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable
instructional or non-instructional equipment which are classified in the Capital
Qutlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes
budgeted capital outlay in this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles as
they pertain to governmental entities state that General Fund resources may be
used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the
resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues.
Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State
of New Jersey Aid, district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are
those that result in the acquisition of or additions to fixed assets for land, existing
buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or
remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources
can be transferred from and to current expense by board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for and
report the proceeds of specific revenue scurces that are restricted or committed to
expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.
Thus, the Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue from State and Federal Governments (other than major capital projects,
debt service or the enterprise funds) and local appropriations that are legally
restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for and
report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to expenditure
for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and
other capital assets or leased assets (other than those financed by proprietary
funds). The financial resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds
that are specifically authorized by the voters as a separate question on the ballot
either during the annual election or at a special election, funds appropriated from
the General Fund, and from aid provided by the State to offset the cost of approved
capital projects.

Debt Service Fund - Debt service funds are used to account for and report
financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for
principal and interest.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Proprietary Fund

Enterprise Fund - The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and
expenses pertaining to the District's Food Service program operations.
These funds are utilized to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated
intent is that the cost (i.e., expenses including depreciation and indirect
costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis
are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Basis of Accounting - Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial
records and reported on the financial statements.

District-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: The District-wide
financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Differences in
the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of
revenue, the recording of unearned revenue, and in the presentation of expenses
versus expenditures. Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as
under New Jersey State Statute a municipality is required to remit to its school
district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to
the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as
revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both
measurable and available.

The District is entitled to receive monies under the established payment schedule
and the unpaid amount is considered to be an "accounts receivable.,” Revenue
from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which
all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Governmental Fund Financial
Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available.
“Measurable” means the amount of the transactions can be determined and
“available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when
the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general
long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset
and ieased asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under leases and installment
purchases are reported as other financing sources.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the
general, special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to
the county office. In accordance with P.L. 2011, ¢. 202, the District elected to move
the School Board election to the date of the November general election thereby
eliminating the vote on the annual base budget unless required by the mandated
State budget CAP. The legal level of budgetary controi is established at line item
accounts within each fund. Line ifem accounts are defined as the lowest (most
specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts
referenced in N.JAC. 6A:23-2.2(H1. Expenditures may not legally exceed
budgeted appropriations at the line item level. ANl budget amendmenis and
transfer must be approved by School Board resolution. Budget amendments
during the vear ended June 30, 2024 totaled net ($1,552,686.00), representing
prior unbudgeted state aids, and other approved modifications. All budget amounts
presented in the accompanying supplementary information refiect the original
budget and the amended budget {which have been adjusted for legally authorized
revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and
unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The capital
projects fund presents the remaining project appropriations compared to current
year expenditures.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a
management control device during the year. For governmental funds there are no
substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and generally
accepted accounting principles with the exception of the legally mandated
recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary purposes only and the
special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed
as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types.
Unencumbered appropriations iapse at fiscal year-end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant
accounting budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the
presentation of GAAP basis financial records.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Encumbrance Accounting

Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of
the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds other
than the special revenue fund are reported as assigned fund balances at fiscal
year-end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather
commitments related to unperformed confracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received
advances are reflected in the balance sheet as unearned revenues at fiscal year-
end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An
entry will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance
amount as of the current fiscal year end,

interfunds

Interfund receivables and payables arise from transactions between particuiar
funds and are considered short term in duration. The interfund transactions are
recorded by all funds affected in the period in which the transactions are executed
and are part of the district's available expendable resources.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

inventories of materials and supplies held for consumption in the governmental
funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and year end balances
are not reported in the financial statements.

Inventories of food and/or supplies in the food service fund are recorded at cost on
a first-in, first-out basis or, in the case of Food Distribution Commodities, at stated
value which approximates market.

Prepaid expenses which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the
enterprise fund, are recorded as an expenditure in the year of purchase.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED}

Capital Assets

The District has an established formal system of accounting for its capital assets.
Capital Assets used for governmental purposes, which include land, buildings and
improvements, and furniture and equipment, are only reported in the district-wide
financial statements. The District generally defines capital assets as assets with
an initial cost of $2,000.00 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of one
year. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost. Donated
capital assets are valued at their acquisition values on the date received. The cost
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated
in the district-wide statements using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Estimated Useful Lives
School Buildings 40

Building Improvements 20
Electrical/Plumbing 30

Vehicles 8

Office and Computer Equipment 5-10
Instructional Equipment 10

Ground Equipment 15

Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused sick days) as
directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB
16), “Accounting for Compensated Absences.” A liability for compensated
absences attributable to services already rendered and not contingent on a specific
event that is outside the contro! of the employer and employee is accrued as
empioyees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District’s personnel policy and/or collective bargaining unit
contracts. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. Sick leave
benefits provide for ordinary sick pay and begin vesting with the employee after
four years of service.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Compensated Absences (Continued)

The liability for compensated absences was accrued using the termination
payment method, whereby the liability is calculated based on the amount of sick
days that are expected to become eligible for payment upon retirement. The
District estimates its accrued compensated absences liability based on the
accumulated sick days at the balance sheet date by those employees who are
currently eiigible to receive retirement payments.

For the District-wide Statements, the current portion is the amount estimated fo be
used in the following year. In accordance with GAAP, for the governmental funds,
in the Fund Financial Statements, all of the compensated absences are considered
long-term and therefore, are not a fund liability and represents a reconciling item
between the fund level and District-wide presentations.

Fund Equity

Fund balance restrictions are used to indicate that portion of the fund balance that
is not available for expenditures or is legally segregated for a specific future use.
Designations of portions of the fund balances are established to indicate fentative
plans for financial utilization in a future period. The unassigned fund balances
represent the amount available for future budgetary operations.

Unassigned net position represents the remains of the District's equity in the
cumulative earnings of the food service fund.

Unearned Revenue
Uneamed revenue in the special revenue and capital projects funds represents
funds which have been received but not yet earned. A corresponding accounts

receivable has also been established for any open encumbrances at year end
which is an allowable under generally accepted accounting principles.
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Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the
District-wide financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and
accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from
current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
contractually required pension contributions and compensated absences that are
paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the fund financial
statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year.
Bonds are recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when due.

Net Position

Net Position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net
investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any borrowing used for the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported
as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the
enabling legisiation adopted by the District or through external restrictions imposed
by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The District’s
policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available.

Fund Balance Reserves

Under GASB 54, in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the
following classifications of fund balance:

Non-Spendable — includes amounts that cannot be spend because they are either
not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required {o be maintained
intact. The District reports a portion of fund balance for leases that are not available
for appropriation because it represents the year-end balance of the lease
receivable in excess of the deferred inflow of resources for the lease receivable,
which is not spendable resource.

Restricted — includes amounts restricted by external sources {(creditors, laws of
other governments, efc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legisiation.
The District reports the Capital Reserve, Maintenance Reserve, Scholarships,
Student Activities, Unemployment and Excess Surpius as Restricted Fund
Balance.

Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes.
Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board
of Education, the District’s highest level of decision making authority.
Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved by
the Board of Education.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

Fund Balance Reserves (Continued)

Assigned — includes amount that the District intends to use for a specific purpose,
but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance. Under the
District’s policy, amounts may be assigned by the Business Administrator. The
District reports Year End Encumbrances and amounts Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditures as Assigned Fund Balance.

Unassigned — is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has
not been restricted, committed, or assigned 1o specific purposes within the general
fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive unassigned
fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for
specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted, committed, or assigned to
those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund
balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unresiricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to
have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed,
assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers
amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and
finally unassigned funds, as needed.

Revenues Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and
receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Available means the rescurces will be collected within the current fiscal year or are
expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current fiscal year. For the District, available means within sixty days of the fiscal
year end.
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Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions (Continued)

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly
giving egual value in return, include property taxes, income taxes, grants,
entitlements, and donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from property
taxes is recognized in the period in which the income is earned. Revenue from
grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required o be used
or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the
District must provide local resources to be used for a specific purpose; and
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District on a
reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized. Under the
modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered both
measurable and available at fiscal year-end; property taxes available as an
advance, interest, and tuition.

Proprietary Funds Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing
services in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the School District enterprise funds are charges {o
customers for sales of food service. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expense and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Aliocation of Indirect Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect
expenses are allocated to functions but are reported separately in the Statement
of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer’s share of social security,
workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated based on
salaries of the program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is specifically
identified by function in the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that
could not be attributed to a specific function is considered an indirect expense and
is reported separately in the Statement of Activities.

Extraordinary and Special items

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and
infrequent of occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within
control of management and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in
occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions occurred during the fiscal year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generaily accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

In the District-Wide Financial Statements for purposes of measuring the net
pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District's proportionate share of the New Jersey Public Employees
Retirement System ("PERS") and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
(“TPAF") and the additions to/deductions from these retirement systems’ fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by
PERS and TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

In the Governmental Fund Financial Statements, the year-end Net pension liability
is not required to be reflected. Pension related revenues and expenditures are
reflected based on amounts that are normally expected to be liquidated with
available financial resources for required pension contributions. Expenditures for
PERS are recognized based upon billings made by the State of New Jersey due
April 1% of each fiscal year. TPAF contributions are paid on the District’s behalf by
the State of New Jersey. The Governmental Fund Financial Statements reflects
both a revenue and expenses for this pension contribution,

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Currently, the District has
one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to
pensions.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow
of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has two items that qualify in this
category, deferred amounts related to pensions and leases.
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Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases

Lease receivables are measured at the present value of the lease payments
expected to be received during the lease term. The District may receive variable
lease payments that are dependent upon the lessee’s revenue. The variable
payments are recorded as an inflow of resources in the period the payment is
received. The deferred inflow of resources is recorded at the initiation of the lease
in an amount equal to the initial recording of the lease receivabie. The deferred
inflow of resources is amortized in a systematic and rational manner over the lease
term.

Lease liabilities represent obligations to make lease payments arising from the
lease. Lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement date based on the
present value of the expected lease payments over the lease term, less any lease
incentives. Interest expense is recognized ratably over the contract term. The
lease term may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is
reasonably certain that the option will be exercised. Payments for short-term
leases with a term of 12 months or less are expensed as incurred and these leases
are not included as leas liabilities or right ~to-use assets on the statements of net
position.

Right to Use Assets

Right to use assets are initially measured at an amount equal to the initial
measurement of the related lease liability plus any lease payments made prior to
the lease term, less incentives, and plus ancillary charges necessary to place the
lease into service. The right to use assets are amortized in a systematic and
rational manner over the life of the related lease.

Subscription-Based information Technology Arrangements (SBITAs)

GASB Statement No. 96 defines a SBITA; establishes that a SBITA resuits in a
right-to-use subscription asset (an intangible asset) and a corresponding liability;
provides capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments,
including implementation costs of a SBITA; and requires note disclosure regarding
SBITAs.
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June 30, 2024

NOTE 2: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Board considers petty cash, change funds, cash in banks, certificates of
deposiis, deposits in the New Jersey Cash Management Fund, deposits in the
governmental money market fund, deposits in the New Jersey Asset and Rebate
Management Program and short term investments with original maturities of three
months or less as cash and cash equivalents. Investments are stated at cost,
which approximates market.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in public depositories which
are located in New Jersey and which meet the requirements of the Governmental
Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA requires a bank that accepts public
funds to be a public depository. A public depository is defined as a state bank, a
national bank, or a savings bank, which is located in the State of New Jersey, the
deposits of which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The
statutes also require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public
funds that exceed certain insurance limits. All collateral must be deposited with
the Federal Reserve Bank or a Banking Institution that is a member of the Federal
Reserve System, and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.00. Under
(GUDPA), if a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the
collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of the
deposits to the governmental unit.

The District had the following cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2024:

Bank Reconciling ltems: Reconciled
Fund Type: Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Governmental $15,294,192.56 $11,725.37 $1,096,898.12 $14,209,019.81
Proprietary 8,147.96 2,851.71 5,296.25
$15,302,340.52 $11,725.37 $1,099,745.83 $14,214,316.06

Custodial Credit Risk ~ Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event
of a bank failure, the deposits may not be returmed. The District does not have a
specific deposit policy for custodial credit risk other than those policies that adhere
to the requirements of statute. As of June 30, 2024, based upon the coverage
provided by FDIC and NJGUDPA, no amount of the bank balance was exposed to
custodial credit risk. Of the cash on balance in the bank, $334,011.38 was covered
by Federal Depository Insurance and $9,895,289.31 was covered under the
provisions of NJGUDPA and $5,073,039.83 was on deposit with the N.J. Cash
Management Fund.
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NOTE2:  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments

The purchase of investments by the District is strictly limited by the express
authority of the N.J.5.A. 18A:20-37 Education, Administration of School Districts.
Permitted investments include any of the following type of securities:

1. Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations
guaranteed by the United States of America;

2. Government money market mutual funds which are purchased from an
investment company or investment trust which is registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the “Investment Company Act
of 1940, 15 U.S.C. 80a-1 et seq., and operated in accordance with 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and which portfolio is limited to U.S. Government
securities that meet the definition of an eligible security pursuant to 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and repurchase agreements that are collateralized by
such U.S. Government securities in which direct investment may be made
pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. These funds are
also required to be rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.

3. Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued
in accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a maturity date
not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase, provided that such
obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or other
external factor;

4, Bonds or other obligations of the Local Unit or bonds or other obligations
of school districts of which the Local Unit is a part or within which the school
district is located.

5. Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397 days
from date of purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the
Department of Treasury for investment by Schooi Districts;

6. Local government investment pools that are fully invested in U.S.
Government securities that meet the definition of eligible security pursuant
to 17 C.F.R. § 270a-7 and repurchase agreements that are collateralized
by such U.8. Government securities in which direct investment may be
made pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. This type
of investment is also required to be rated in the highest category by a
nationally recognized statistical rating organization.
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NOTE 2: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Investments (Continued)

7. Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund
established pursuant to section 1 of P.1.. 1977, ¢.281 (C. 52:18A-90.4), or

8. Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if.
a. the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to
paragraphs (1) and (3) of this subsection;
b. the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party,;
c. the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;
d. the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository

as defined in section 1 of P.L. 1970, ¢.236 (C. 17:19-41), and

e a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and
security of collateral is executed.

At June 30, 2024, the District had no outstanding investments.

As of June 30, 2024, the District had $5,073,039.83 on deposit with the New Jersey
Cash Management Fund. Based upon the limitations set forth by New Jersey
Statutes 40A:5-15.1 and existing investment practices of the Investment Council
of the New Jersey Cash Management Fund, the District is generally not exposed
to credit risks, custodial credit risks, concentration of credit risks and interest rate
risks for its investments nor is it exposed to foreign currency risk for its deposits
and investments.
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NOTE 3:

June 30, 2024

CHANGE IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total Capital Assets not

being depreciated

Land Improvements

Buildings & Building Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Totals at historical cost

Gross Assets (Memo only}

Less: Accumutated Depreciation
t.and Improvements

Buildings & Building Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Total Depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net of depreciation

Total Governmental Fund Activities

Beginning Transfers/ Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
$14,043,000.00 $14,043,000.00

722 ,085.55 $116,189.00 838,274.55
14,765,085.55 116,189.00 14,881,274.55
4,890,260.55 53,352.63 4,843613.18
70,197,051.86 52,067.80 70,24%,119.66
4,730,808.48 313.336.56 5,053,235.03
79,827,210.88 418,756.98 80,245,967.87
04,592,296.44 534,045.98 08,127,242.42
(3,387,306.64) (115.473.10) (3,5602,779.74)
{30,016,382.10) (1,409,252.18) (31,425,634.28)
(3,551,850.96) (235,762.52) (3,787,613.48)
{36.,955,539.70} {1,760,487.80) (38,716,027 .50}
42,871,671.19 {1,341,730.82} 41,528,840.37

$57,636,756.74

(§1,225,541.82)

$56,411,214.92
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NOTE 3: CHANGE IN CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows:

Proprietary Activities:

Machinery & Equipment $347,754.91 $347.754.91
Totals at historical cost 347,754.91 347,754.91
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Machinery & Equipment (243,217.15) {$14,788.49) {228,005.64)
Total Depreciation (213,217.18) {14,788.49) {228,005.64)
Total Proprietary Activities $134,537.76 (314,788.49) $119,749.27
Depreciation expense of governmental activities was charged to functional expenses
areas of the District as follows:
[nstruction:
Regular $20,129.66
Support services:
Student & instruction related services 49,314.09
Technology 16,171.84
Plant operations and maintenance 182,780.74
Pupil transportation 68,805.15
Direct Expense of various functions 1,413,186.32

$1,760,487.80
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NOTE &:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2024

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The District has recorded intangible assets. The assets are for various
subscription-based information technology arrangements (“SBITAs"). These
agreements are discussed in the SBITAs subsection of the Long-term liabilities
section of these notes. The intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the ferms of the related agreements. Intangible asset activity for the
Governmental Funds for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows:

Balance, Balance,
une 30, 2023 Additions Reductions une 30, 2024
Governmental Funds:
intangible Assets:
Software 344, 597.63 $44,597.63
Total Intangible Assets 44 597.63 44,597 .63
Less: Accumulated Amortizations for:
Software (12 979.85) (12 979.85)
Total Accumulated Amortization {12,979.85) {12,979.85)
Governmental Funds-intangible
Assets, net $31 §=§17".Ti’£’» $31,617.78

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Bonds are issued by the District pursuant to the provisions of Title 18A,
Education, of the New Jersey Statutes and are required fo be approved by the
voters of the municipality through referendum. The proceeds of bonds are
recorded in the Capital Projects Fund and are restricted fo the use for which
they were approved in the bond referendum. All bonds are retired in annual
instaliments within the statutory period of usefulness.

School Bonds issued by the District are entitled to and benefit from the provision
of the New Jersey School Board Reserve Act P.L. 1980 ¢.72. Basically, funds
are held by the State of New Jersey within its State Fund for the Support of Free
Public Schools as a school bond reserve pledged by law to secure payment of
principal and inferest due on such bonds in the event of the inabilify of the issuer
to make payments.

At June 30, 2024, the District had no bonds or notes authorized but not issued.
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NOTE &: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The following is a summary of changes in liabilities that effect other long-term

obligations for the year ended June 30, 2024:

Balance, Balance, Due Within
6/30/2023 Additions Reductions 613012024 One Year
Bonds Payable $4,485.000.00 {$1,480,000.00) $2,895,000.00 $1,500,000.00
Compensated Absences 1,261,554.51 {263,256.45) 998,298.06
SBITAs Payable $44,607.63 (13,579.72) 31,017.91 12,463.08
Net Pension Liabifity 11,215,984.00 {993,790.00) 10,222,194.00
Instaliment Purchases
Payable 1,389,765.34 {615,646.46) 774,118.88 399, 821.59
Total $18,352,303.85 $44 547,63 ($3,376,272.63) $15,020,628.85 $1,912,284.67
Debt Service Reguirements

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of June 30, 2024,

including interest payments on issued debt, are as follows:

Fiscal Year
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2025 $1,500,000.00 $149,750.00 $1,648,750.00
2026 1,495,000.00 74,750.00 1,569,750.00
$2,895.000.00 $224,500.00 $3,219,500.00

General obligation school and refunding bonds payable with their outstanding

balances are comprised of the following individual issue:

issue

$13,970,000.00 in 2014 Refunding Bonds due in remaining annual
instaliments of between $1,485,000.00 and $1,500,000.00 ending
March 1, 2026 with interest between 2.500% to 5.000%
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June 30, 2024

NOTE &: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Debt Capacity

Under New Jersey Statutes the District may incur debt in an amount not to exceed
4% of the averaged equalized valuation basis of real property. For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2024, the District borrowing capacity under N.J.S. 18A:24-19
would be as follows:

Equalized
Valuation of
Year Real Property
2023 $3,542,835,039
2022 3,694,801,857
2021 3,542,835,039

$10,780,471,835

Average equalized valuation $3,593,490.645
School borrowing margin

(4% of $3,593,490,645) $143,739,626
Net school debt as of June 30 2024 2,995,000
School borrowing power available $140,744,626

Instaliment Purchases

The District has entered into several instaliment purchase agreements for
technology, equipment, curriculum and buses. The agreements are for terms up
to five years. Future annual debt service payments on installment purchases as
of June 30, 2024 including interest of $29,116.32 are as follows:

Fiscal Year
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2025 $399,821.59 $17.891.08 $417,712.65
2026 275,458.85 8,657.43 284,116.28
2027 98,838.44 2,587.83 101,408.27

$774,118.88 $20,116.32 $803,235.20
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NOTE 6:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Subscription-Based Information Technology Agreements Pavable

The District has entered into an agreements for software that qualifies as
subscription-based information technology agreements under GASB 96. The
future minimum subscription obligations and the net present value of these
minimum payments as of June 30, 2024, were as follows:

Fiscal Year
June 30 Principal interest Total
2025 $12,463.08 $1,116.64 $13,579.72
2026 12,911.75 667.97 13,579.72
2027 3,8498.05 203.16 4,052.21
2028 1,794.03 64.58 1,858.61

$31,017.91 $2,052.35 $33,070.26

PENSION PLANS

Bescription of Plans - All required employees of the District are covered by either
the Public Employees’ Retirement System or the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity
Fund which have been established by state statute and are administered by the
New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the State of
New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will be assumed
by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a
publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and
required supplementary information for the Public Employees Retirement System
and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may be obtained by
writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey,
08625.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund {TPAF) - The Teachers’ Pension and
Annuily Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disabilty and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special funding
situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the
State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system'’s other related non-
contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or
members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, and
employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are unciassified,
professicnal and cettified.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Public _Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) - The Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the
provision of N.J.S A 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement System
is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is mandatory for
substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not
required to be a member of another state-administered retirement system or other
state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) - The Defined Contribution
Retirement Program (DCRP) was established under the provision of Chapter 92,
P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 to provide coverage to elected and cerfain
appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007. Membership is mandatory for such
individuals with vesting occurring after one year of membership.

Significant Legislation

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, ¢. 78 enacted certain changes in the operations
and benefit provisions of the TPAF and the PERS systems.

Pension Plan Design Changes

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78, new members of TPAF and PERS, hired
on or after June 28, 2011, will need 30 years of creditable service and have
attained the age of 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a reduction
of 1/4 of 1% for each month that the member is under age 65. New members will
be eligible for a service retirement benefit at age 65.

Funding Changes

Under the new legisiation, the methodology for calculating the unfunded accrued
liability payment portion of the employer's annual pension contribution o the
PERS, and TPAF. The unfunded actuarial accrued lability (UAAL) will be
amortized for each plan over an open-ended 30 year period and paid in level
dollars. Beginning with the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation (July 1, 2018 for PFRS),
the UAAL will be amortized over a closed 30 year period until the remaining period
reaches 20, when the amortization period will revert to an open-ended 20 year
period.

COLA Suspension

The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment to current and future retirees
and beneficiaries are suspended until reactivated as permitied by this law.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Vesting and Benefit Provisions The vesting and benefit provisions of PERS are
set by N.J.S.A 43:15A, 43.3B, and N.J.S.A. 18A.6C for TPAF. All benefits vest
after ten years of service, except for post-retirement healthcare benefits that vest
after 25 years of service.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three vears
of service credit, hecome vested for 2% of reiated interest earmed on the
contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are
entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.

Contribution Requirements The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and
N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active members and contributing
employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State
of New Jersey legislation.

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78 provides for increases in the employee
contribution rates: from 5.5% to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased-in over 7 years
beginning in the first year, meaning after 12 months, after the law's effective date
for TPAF and PERS.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for
cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement
medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-contributing
employer of TPAF (i.e., the State of New Jersey makes the employer contribution
on behalf of public school districts.

Three Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage
Year Ended Pension Cost of APC Net Pension
June 30 {APC) Contributed Obligation
2024 $943,241.00 100% $943,241.00
2023 937,217.00 100% 937,217.00
2022 846,591.00 100% 846,591.00
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the State of New
Jersey contributed $9,681,643.00, $8,202,232.00 and $8,318,262.00 respectively,
excluding post-retirement medical and long-term disability insurance, to the TPAF
pension system on behalf of the District.

Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 1BA:66-66 during the years ended June 30,
2024, 2023 and 2022, the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District
$1,933,836.20, $1,961,983.69 and $1,908,091.33 respectively for the employer's
share of social security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their
base salaries.

ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

At June 30, 2024, the State reported a net pension liability of $10,222,184.00 for
the District 's proportionate share of the total net pension liability. The total pension
liability for the June 30, 2023 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2022, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2023. The
District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At
June 30, 2023, the District’s proportion was 0.0705739441 percent, which was a
decrease of 0.0037465404 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30,
2022.

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the District recognized a pension expense of
$51,073.00 in the government-wide financial statements. This pension expense
was based on the pension plan’s June 30, 2023 measurement date.
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NOTE 7: ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSIONS — GASB 68 (CONTINUED)

Public Emplovees Retirement System (PERS) {Continued)

At June 30, 2024, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred

inflows of resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Qutfiow of Inflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 97,737.00 % 41,785.00
Changes of assumptions 22,456.00 619,509.00
Net difference between projected and actual
garnings on pension plan investments 47,075.00
Changes in proportion and differences
between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 510,038.00 633,399.00
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 962,104.80

$ 163941080 $ 1,204,693.00

The $962,104.80 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from school district contributions subsequent to the measurement date
(i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2024, the plan measurement date is June
30, 2023) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2025.

66



NOTET:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSIONS — GASE 68 (CONTINUED)

Public Emplovees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Other local amounts reported by the State as the District’s proportionate share of
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related fo

pensions will be recognized in the State’s actuarially calculated pension expense
as follows:

Year Ended
June 30, Amount
2024 ($564,366.20)
2025 (325,908.20)
2026 396,285.80
2027 (100,007.20)
2028 (23,391.20)

($617,387.00)

Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2023 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2022, which rolled forward to
June 30, 2023. These actuarial valuations used the following assumptions:

inflation
Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases
Through 2026 2.75-6.55%
Based on

Years of Service

investment Rate of Return 7.00%
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ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSIONS —~ GASB 68 (CONTINUED)

Accounting and Financial Reporiing for Pensions - GASB 68 (Continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions {(Continued)

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median
Income Employee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4%
adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010
on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-
2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 81.4%
adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability
retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-
Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and
117.2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-
2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2022 valuation were based on the

resulfs of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30,
2021.
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ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSIONS — GASB 68 (CONTINUED)

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - GASE 68 {Continued)

Public Emplovees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Long-Term Rate of Retumn

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of refurn on plan
investments (7.00% at June 30, 2023) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investment and Division of
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term

expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return {(expecied returns, net
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate
of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
aliocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of
arithmetic rates of return for each major assets class included in PERS’s target
assets allocation as of June 30, 2023 asset are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Allocation Rate of Return
US Equity 28.00% 8.98%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 12.75% 9.22%
International Small Cap Equity 1.25% 9.22%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 11.13%
Private Equity 13.00% 12.50%
Real Estate 8.00% 8.58%
Real Assets 3.00% 8.40%
High Yield 4.50% 6.97%
Private Credit 8.00% 9.20%
Investment Grade Credit 7.00% 5.19%
Cash Equivalents 2.00% 3.31%
U.S. Treasury’s 4.00% 3.31%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 6.21%
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NOTET: ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSIONS — GASE 68 (CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June
30, 2023. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member
contribution rates and that contributions from employers and the nonemployer
contributing entity will be based on 100% of the actuarially determined
contributions for the State employer and 100% of actuarially determined
contributions for the local employers. Based on those assumptions, the plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate
of return on plan investments was applied to all projected benefit payments in
determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of net pension liability to changes in
the discount rate

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability
of the participating employers as of June 30, 2023 respectively, calculated using
the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the District’'s proportionate
share of the collective net pension liability would be if it was calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1- percentage point higher
than the current rate:

June 30, 2023

1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
6.00% 7.00% 8.00%
District’s proportionate share
of the pension liability $13,307,122.00 $10,222,194.00 $7,596,513.00

Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public
Employees Retirement System (PERS). The report may be obtained at State of
New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey
08625-0295 hitp.//www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions
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ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSIONS —~ GASE 68 (CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be
funded by the State in accordance with N.J.8 A 18:66-33. Therefore, these local
participating employers are considered to be in a special funding situation as defined
by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing
entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute directly to the plan
(except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or
deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local
participating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local
participating employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer contributing
entities' total proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the
iocal participating emplovyer.

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the District
recognized at June 30, 2024 was as follows:

Net Pension Liability:

Districts proportionate share $-0-
State’s proportionate share
associated with the District 116,551,853.00

$116,551,853.00

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the tfotal pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
vajuation as of June 30, 2022 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2023. The net
pension liability associated with the District was based on a projection of the District's
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined.
At June 30, 2023, the proportion of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the
District was .2283867461% which was an increase of .0034583197 percent from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2022.

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the District recognized on-behalf pension expense
and revenue of $2,863,340.00 in the government-wide financial statements for
contributions provided by the State. This pension expense and revenue was based on
the pension plans June 30, 2023 measurement date.
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ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSIONS — GASB 68 (CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liahility for the June 30, 2023 measurement date was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2022, which was rolled forward to June 30,
2023. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to
all periods in the measurement:

Inflation rate:

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases 2.75%-4.25%

Based on Years of Service
investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Mortality Rate

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-
Median Income Employee mortality table with a 83.9% adjustment for males and
85.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of
2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the
Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a
114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality
table with a 106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3% adjustment for females, and
with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2022 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30,
2021.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Retum

in accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at June 30, 2023) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries.
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ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68 (CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return {Continued)

The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of refurn for each major asset class included
in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2023 are summarized in the
following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Allocation Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 28.00% 8.98%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 12.75% 9.22%
international Small Cap Equity 1.25% 9.22%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 11.13%
Private Equity 13.00% 12.50%
Real Assets 3.00% 8.58%
Real Estate 8.00% 8.40%
High Yield 4.50% 6.97%
Private Credit 8.00% 9.20%
Investment Grade Credit 7.00% 5.19%
Cash Equivalents 2.00% 3.31%
U.S. Treasuries 4.00% 3.31%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 6.21%

Discount Rale

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June
30, 2023. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member
contribution rates and that contributions from employers wili be based on 100% of
the actuarially determined contributions for the State. Based on those
assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
ail projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all projected
benefit payments in determining the total pension liability.
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ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68 (CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Because the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability is zero,
censideration of potential changes in the discount rate is not applicable to the
District.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Teachers Public
and Annuity Fund (TPAF). The report may be obtained at State of New Jersey
Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295
by visiting http://www . state nj.usftreasury/pensions.
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ACCOUNTING AND_ FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75

Plan Descripticn and Benefits Provided

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-
employer defined benefit OPEB plan, which is administered on a pay-as-you-go
basis. Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the
criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefifs Other Than Pensions. The State Health
Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical, prescription
drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered
dependents of local education employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are
legally required to be funded by the State of New Jersey in accordance with
N.J.S. A 52:14-17.32f. Therefore, these local participating employers are
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASEH Statement No.
75 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. According to
N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f, the State provides employer-paid coverage {o employees
who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years or more of
service credit in, or retires on a disability pension from, one or more of the following
plans: the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public Employees'
Retirement System (PERS), the Police and Firemen Retirement System (PFRS),
or the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L., 2011, future
retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have less than 20 years
of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a percentage of the
cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or more
years of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for which the
retiree will be responsible will be determined based on the retiree's annual
retirement benefit and level of coverage.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan Membership
covered by the benefit terms consisted of the following:

Active Plan Members 217,212
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries

Currently Receiving Benefits 162,383
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries

Not Yet Receiving Benefits -0-
Total Plan Members 369.595
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ACCOUNTING AND_FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability

The portion of the total Non-Employer OPEB Liability that was associated with the
District at June 30, 2024 was as follows:

Total OPEB Liability:

District's Proportionate Share $-0-
State's Proportionate Share associated
with the District 101,826,082

$101,826,082

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2023 was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2023.

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability was determined separately based on
actual data of the District.

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the District recognized on-behalf post-
employment expense and revenue of $3,162,632.00 in the government-wide
financial statements for contributions provided by the State. This expense and
revenue was based on the plans June 30, 2023 measurement date.

At June 30, 2024, the District's proportion was 1944668408 percent, which was a
decrease of .0027265863 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2022.

The State, a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal
obligation to make employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS,
TPAF/ABP and PFRS participants. The District’s proportionate share percentage
determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No. 75 is zero
percent. Consequently, the District did not recognize any portion of the collective
Non-Employer OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability that was associated with the District as of
June 30, 2023 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022, which
was rolled forward to June 30, 2023.The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan
member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in. This actuarial
valuation used the foliowing actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the
measurement:

June 30, 2023

TPAF/ABP PERS PERS
Inflation — 2.5%
Salary Increases 2.75-4 25%" 2.75-6,55%* 3.25-16.25%*

*- Based on Years of Service

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy "Teachers"
(TPAF/ABP), "General" (PERS), and "Safety” (PFRS) classification headcount-
weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections
from the central year using Scale MP-2021. Postretirement mortality rates were
based on the Pub-2010 "General” classification headcount-weighted mortality
table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central
year using Scale MP-2021. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010
"General" classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully
generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale
MP-2021 for current disables retirees. Future disabled retirees was based on the
Pub-2010 "Safety” (PFRS), "General" (PERS), and "Teachers” (TPAF/ABP)
classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational
mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2021.

Actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2022 valuation were based on the results
of the TPAF, PERS and PFRS experience studies prepared for July 1, 2018 to
June 30, 2021.
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Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 6.50% and decreases
to a 4.50% long-term trend rate after nine years. For post-65 medical benefits PPO,
the trend is increasing to 14.8% in fiscal year 2026 and decreases to 4.50% in
fiscal year 2033, For HMOQ, the trend is increasing to 17.4% in fiscal year 2026 and
decreases 1o 4.50% in fiscal year 2033. For prescription drug benefits, the initial
trend rate is 9.5% and decreases to a 4.50% long-term trend rate after seven
years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.00%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.65%. This
represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source
is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. As
the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond rate, it is not considered
in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at the municipal
bond rate.

Changes in the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liabhility

Shown below are details regarding The Total OPEB non-employer Liability
associated with the District for the measurement period from June 30, 2022 to June

30, 2023,
Balance at 6/30/22 $99,871,496
Changes for the year:;
Service cost $4,394,267
interest 3,586,190
Differences between expected
and actual experience (3,527,517)
Changes in assumptions or
other inputs 205,239
Membership Contributions 91,901
Benefit payments - Net (2,795,494)
Net changes 1,854 586
Balance at 6/30/23 $101,826,082
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Sensitivity of the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the total Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2023, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above
as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be if it was calculated
using a discount rate that is 1 -percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher
than the current rate:

June 30, 2023

1.00% At Discount 1.00%
Decrease (2.65%) Rate (3.65%) Increase (4.65%)
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Employer
OPERB Liability associated
with the District $119,373,600 $101,826,082 $87,737,462

Sensitivity of the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability to Changes in
Healthcare Trends

The following presents the total Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2023, calculated using the healthcare trend rate as disclosed
above as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be if it was
calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1- percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2023

1.00% Healthcare Cost 1.00%
Decrease Trend Rate Increase
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the fotal Non-Employer
OPER Liability associated
with the District $84,531,347 $101,826,082 $124, 456,288
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NOTE 8:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

OPEB_ Expense and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Non-Employer OPEB Liability

At June 30, 2023, the State reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to retired school employee’s Non-Employer OPEB
Liability associated with the District from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Qutflow of inflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected
and actual experience $ 14,856,718 $§ 26,819,974
Changes of assumptions 14,479,797 28,100,358
Changes in proportion 3,164,974 2,853,215
$ 32,501,488 9 57,773,547

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to the State’s proportionate share of the total Non-Employer
OPED Liability associated with the District will be recognized in OPEB expense as
follows:

Measurement
Period Ended
June 30 Amount
2024 ($5,015,615)
2025 {$5,015,615)
2026 ($4,351,119)
2027 {$2,539,663)
2028 ($470,249)
Total
Thereafter ($7,879,7986)

($25,272,058)
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NOTE 8:

NOTE 9:

NOTE 10:

NOTE 11:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

QOPEB Expense and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Non-Employer OPEB Liability (Continued)

in accordance with GASBS No. 75, the District's proportionate share of school
retirees OPEB is zero. There is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate
share of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources in the
financial statements,

State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employee Plan Information

The New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits issues publicly available reports
on the OPEB plan. Those reports may be obtained by writing to the Division of
Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295 or on their website at
hitp:/iwww state nj us/treasury/pensions/financial-reports.shimi.

LITIGATION

The Board attorney's letter advises that there is no litigation, pending litigation,
claims, contingent liabilities, unasserted claims or assessments or statutory
violations which involve the Board of Education and which might materiaily affect
the Board's financial position.

CONTINGENCIES

The Board receives financial assistance from the State of New Jersey and the U.S.
Government in the form of grants. Entitlement to the funds is generally conditional
upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements and applicable
reguiations, including the expenditure of the funds for eligible purposes. The State
and Federal grants received and expended in the 2023-2024 fiscal year were
subject to the U.S. OMB Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08
which mandates that grant revenues and expenditures be audited in conjunction
with the Board's annual audit. Findings and questioned costs, if any, relative to
federal awards and state financial assistance programs will be discussed in the
Single Audit Section, Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. In addition, all
grants and cost reimbursements are subject to financial and compliance audits by
the grantors.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed fo various risks of loss related {o toris; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions, injuries to employees; and natural
disasters. The District maintains commercial coverage covering each of those
risks of loss. The administration believes such coverage is sufficient to preciude
any significant uninsured losses to the District. Settled claims have not exceeded
this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 11: RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains insurance coverage
covering each of those risks of loss. The administration believes such coverage is
sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the District. Settled claims
have not exceeded the insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected
to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit
Reimbursement Method.” Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse the
New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees
and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for
amounts due to the State. Charges are applied to the Unemployment
Compensation Claims Payable first, and any remaining charges are applied to the
Unemployment Compensation budget appropriation. The following table is a
summary of District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements {o the
State for benefits paid and the combined ending balance of the District’s
Unemployment Compensation Claims Payable and Unemployment Restricted
Fund Balance for the current and previous two years:

Interest and
Year Ended Employer Employee Amount Ending
June 30 Contributions Confributions Reimbursed Balance
2024 $-0- $74,779.82 $98,469.17 $473,934 42
2023 - 64,898.39 64,895.79 497,623.77
2022 -0- 72,333.56 15,217.85 497 621.17

Health and Prescription Drug Insurance

As of June 30, 2024, the District has recognized an accrued liability of
$1,228,282.00 for the Supplemental Premium under the agreement with Cigna
Health and Life Insurance Company (CHLIC).
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NOTE 12:

NOTE 13:

NOTE 14:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation and sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated Absences”. A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are
paid for accrued vacation. The District's policy permits employees to accumulate
unused sick leave and carry forward the amount o subsequent years. Upon
retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in
accordance with the Districts agreements with the various employee unions.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types are
recorded in the district-wide statement of net position. As of June 30, 2024, a
liability existed for compensated absences for governmental fund-types in the
district-wide Statement of Net Position of $998,298.06.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is
recorded within those funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30,
2024 no liability existed for compensated absences in the proprietary funds.

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED-GAAP BASIS

General Fund - Of the $12,084,936.46 in General Fund Balance at June 30, 2024,
$1,027,767.73 has been assigned for encumbrances; $81,183.10 is non-
spendable, $3,978,983.32 has been restricted in the Capital Reserve Account;
$1,012,871.86 has been restricted in the Maintenance Reserve Account;
$2,443,675.44 has been restricted as excess surplus; $1,453,021.69 has been
restricted as excess surplus - subsequent years’ expenditures; $444,284.83 has
been restricted as unemployment; $746,978.31 has been assigned for subsequent
years’ expenditures: and $896,170.18 is unassigned.

CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS ~ BUDGETARY BASIS

In accordance with N.J.S.A.18A:7F-7, as amended by P.L. 2004, c73 (§1701), the
Restricted Fund Balance Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the
New Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996
(CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required {o restricted General Fund
balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required
minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years’ budget.
The excess fund balance resuiting from the year ended June 30, 2024 is
$2,443,675.44.
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NOTE 15:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was originally established by the District for the
accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal
years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity
is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the
district’s approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the
LRFP to the department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve
by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes. A
district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the
voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a
special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuantto N.J.S. A
19:60-2. Pursuant o N.J.A.C. 8:23A-5.1(d)7, the balance in the account cannot at
any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its
approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve during the year ended June 30, 2024, is as
follows:

Balance, July 1, 2023 $3,098,726.17

interest Earnings 36,387.15
$4.035,113.32

Withdrawals;

2023-24 Budget (Net) 56,130.00

Balance, June 30, 2024 $3,978,983.32
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NOTE 16:

NOTE 17:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

MAINTENANCE RESERVE ACCOUNT

A maintenance reserve was established through a board resolution by the District
for the accumulation of funds for the required maintenance of a facility in
accordance with N.J. S A. 18A:7G-9 as amended by P.L. 2004, c. 73 (81701).
N.J.S.A. 1BA:7G-31(c), 18A:7G-13 and N.JA.C. 6A:23A-14.2 permits districts, by
board resolution, to transfer undesignated general fund balance to the
maintenance reserve account if approved in the district's original budget certified
for taxes or if the district received voter approval by a separate proposal at budget
time or by special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant
to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. N.JS.A. 18A7F-41(a), 18A;7F-41(b) and N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-
14.3 permit a district board of education to transfer by board resolution (prior to
June 30) any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation
amounts to the maintenance reserve for withdrawal in subsequent school years.

The activity of the maintenance reserve during the year ended June 30, 2024, is
as follows:

Balance, July 1, 2023 $1,000,437.40

interest Earnings 12,434.46

Balance, June 30, 2024 $1,012,871.86
INVENTORY

Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2024 consisted of the following:
Food and Supplies 1,804.63

The value of Federal donated commaodities as reflected on Schedule A (required

by the Single Audit Law of 1996) is the difference between market value and cost

of the commodities at the date of purchase and has been included as an item of
non-operating revenue in the financial statements.
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NOTE 18:

NOTE 19:

NOTE 20:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The District offers its employees a choice of the deferred compensation plans
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457. The
plans permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. Since the District does not have
any property or rights to the plan assets and no fiduciary relationship exists
between the District and the deferred compensation plan, the plan assets are not
included in the District’s financial statements as of June 30, 2024.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30, 2024:

Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $65,978.24
Enterprise Funds $65,978.24
$65,078.24 $65,978.24

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that short-term loans
were disbursed and payments between funds were received.

LEASE RECEIVABLE

The District, as lessor, leases property at 175 Watchung Boulevard, Berkeley
Heights, New Jersey for use of Wireless Edge Towers. The current lease term
expires at December 31, 2026 with three additional extension options, each for 60
months. The lessee must provide notice of intention to terminate to the lessor not
less than sixty days prior to the expiration of any subsequent renewal term. The
lease receivable is measured as the present value of the future value of the
minimum lease payments expected to be received during the lease term at the
discount rate. The discount rate is 1.485% and is equal to the incremental
borrowing rate of the Lessee.
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Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

NOTE 20: LEASE RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Total future minimum lease payments to be received under the lease agreement
are as follows:

Lease Receivable

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal interest

2025 $50,785.51 $18,612.80

2026 53,641.00 17,838.25

2027 56,602.08 17,022.58

2028 59,672.20 16,161.20

2029 62,854.93 15,253.47

2030-2034 366,221.92 60,906.86

2035-2039 464,043.42 30,215.88

2040-2041 161,880.45 1,821.80

Total Minimum Lease Payments $1,276,601.51 $177,933.84

NOTE 21: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District has evaluated material subsequent events occurring after the financial
statement date through February 7, 2025 which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued. Based upon this evaluation, the District has
determined that there are no subsequent events needed to be disclosed.
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

NOTE TO RS| (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION}

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Note A - Explanation of difference between budgetary inflows and outflows
and GAAP revenues and expenditures

Sourcesfinflows of resources

Actual amaounts (budgetary basis) "revenue”
from the budgetary comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the current year,
previcusly it was recognized for budgetary purposes.

The last state aid payment is recognized as revenue for budgetary purposes
and differs from GAAP which does not recognize this revenue until the
subsequent year when the State recognizes the related expense (GASB 33)

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that encumbrances
are recognized as expenditures, and the related revenue is recognized.

Adjust for encumbrances;

Add prior year encumbrances

Less prior year encumbrances canceled
Less current year encumbrances

Lease accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that revenue for
lease income is not recognized using present value,

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds.

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures” from the
budgetary comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Adjust for encumbrances:
Add prior year encumbrances
Less prior year encumbrances canceled

Less current year encumbrances

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance - governmental funds

99

GENERAL
FUND

EXHIBIT "C-3"

SPECIAL
REVENUE
FUND

$ 7108583070 $ 1,346,504.93
253,935.00
{294,289.00)

84,656.42

(11,245.50)

(106,215.92)
24, 436.75

$ 7108972245 $ 1,313,699.93

$70,102,159.02

$ 1,322,107.43

84,656.42
(11,245.50)
(106,215.92)

$

70,102,159.02

$ 1,289,302.43




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART il
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SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION (GASB 68)
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EXHIBIT "L-4"

TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART iif
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Public Empioyees Retirement System
Change in benefit ferms:

None

Change in assumptions:

The following assumptions were used in calculating the net pension
liability in their respective accounting periods:

Long-Term
Measurement Expected Actuarial

Date Ending Discount Raie of Experience

June 30, Raie Return Study Period
2023 1.00% 7.00% O7/01/18-06/30/21
2022 7.00% 7.00% 07/01/18-06/30/21
2021 7.00% 7.00% 07/01/14-06/30/18
2020 7.00% 7.00% 07/61/14-06/30/18
2019 6.26% 7.00% 07/01/14-06/30/18
2018 5.66% 7.00% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2017 5.00% 7.00% C7/01/11-06/30114
2616 3.98% 7.85% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2015 4.90% 7.80% 07/01/08-06/30/11
2014 5.39% 7.80% 07/01/08-06/30/11

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund
Change in benefit ferms:

None

Change in assumptions:

The following assumptions were used in calculating the net pension
fiability in their respective accounting periods:

Long-Term
Measurement Expected Actuarial
Date Ending Discount Rate of Experence
June 30 Rate Retum Study Period
2023 1.00% 7.00% 07/01118-66/30/21
2022 7.00% 7.00% 0701 /18-06/30/21
20214 7.060% 7.00% 07/01/15-06/30/18
2020 5.40% 7.00% 07/0115-06/30/18
2019 5.60% 7.00% G7/01/15-06/30M18
2018 4.86% 7.00% C7/G1/12-06/30M5
2017 4.25% 7.00% 07/01112-06/3015
2018 3.22% 7.65% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2015 4.13% 7.80% G7/61/69-06/30/12
2014 4.68% 7.90% 07/01708-06/30/12
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART IV
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SCHEDULE RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN
PENSIONS {GASB 75)
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART IV
EOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Change in benefi terms:

None.

Change in assumptions:
The foliowing assumptions were used in calculating the Net OPEB Liability
in their respective accounting periods:

Measurement
Date Ending Discouni
Jung 30, Rate
2023 3.65%
2022 3.54%
2021 2.16%
2020 2.21%
2018 3.50%
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
DETAIL STATEMENTS
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LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES

The Long-Term schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the long-term
liabilities of the District. This includes obligations under Serial Bonds and Installment Purchases.
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)




TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

Contents Page
Financial Trends:

These schedules contain trend information fo help the reader understand how
the district's financial performance and well being have changed over time. J-1to J-4

Revenue Capacity;

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the district's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. J-51t0 J-9

Debt Capacity:
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the district's current levels of outstanding debt and the district's ability to issue
additional debt in the future. J-1010 J-13

Demographic and Economic Information:

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators fo help the reader
understand the environment within which the district's financial activities take place.  J-14to J-15

Operating Information:
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the district's financial report relates to the services the district
provides and the activities it performs. J-16 to J-20

Sources

tnless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual comprehensive
financial reports (ACFR) for the relevant year.
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EXHIBIT "J-7"

TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

{rate per $100 of assessed value)

UNAUDITED
Calendar
Year Ended Berkeley Heights Berkeley Heights

Dec. 31 Public Schools Township Union County Total
2015 2.236 0.750 0.961 3.947
2016 2.230 0.760 0.980 3.970
2017 2.270 0.760 1.000 4.030
2018 2.325 0.788 0.977 4.090
2019 2.390 0.810 0.980 4.180
2020 2.420 0.810 0.970 4.200
2021 2.445 0.831 0.900 4178
2022 2.470 0.849 0.880 4189
2023 2528 0.872 0.825 4.225
2024 2.574 0.887 0.826 4287

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Collector

Note:
NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax
levy . The levy when added fo other components of the district’s net budget may not
exceed the prebudget year net budget by more than the spending growth limitation
calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased by the cost of living or
2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any appending growth adjustrments.

a The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the

budget and the net valuation taxable
b Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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EXHIBIT "J-9"
TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTIRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
UNAUDITED

Collected within the Fiscal Year of

the Levy Collections in
Fiscal Year Ended Taxes Levied for Percentage of Subsequent
June 30, the Fiscal Year Amount Levy Years

2015 $ 39,023,112 $ 39,023,112 100.00%
2016 $ 38,458,663 $ 38,458,663 100.00%
2017 $ 40,836,212 $ 40,836,212 100.00%
2018 5 41,927,960 $ 41,927,960 100.00%
2019 3 43,053 825 $ 43,053,625 100.00%
2020 $ 44 187,050 3 44,187,050 100.00%
2021 3 44,731,202 3 44,731,202 100.00%
2022 3 45 347 2414 3 45,347,241 100.00%
2023 $ 46,083,270 3 46,083,270 100.00%
2024 $ 46,887,165 $ 46,987,165 100.00%

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State
Statute, a municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire property
tax balance in the amount voted upon or certified prior to the end of the school year.
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

RATIOS OF NET BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

UNAUDITED

General Bonded Debt Qutstanding

EXHIBIT "J-11

Fiscal Percentage of
Year Net General Actual Taxable
Ended General Obligation Bonded Debt Total Municipal Value * of
June 30, Bonds Deductions Cutstanding Assessed Value Property Per Capita ®
2015 $ 17,675,000.00 -0- $ 17.675,000.00 1,769,481,520.00 1.00% 1,323.87
2016 16,110,000.00 ~0- 16,110,000.00 1,811,683,320.00 0.89% 1,205.93
2017 14,525,000.00 -0~ 14,525,000.00 1,818,855,520.00 0.80% 1,080.65
2018 12,810,000.00 -0~ 12,910,000.00 1,826,907,220.00 0.71% 961.28
2018 11,275,000.00 Q- 11,275,000.00 1,827,913,370.00 0.62% 837.17
2020 9,570,000.00 -Q- 9,570,000.00 1,835,496,270.00 0.52% 718.73
2021 7,810,000.00 -0- 7,810,000.00 1,841,211,370.00 0.42% 586.64
2022 5,870,000.00 -0- 5,970,000.00 1,850,356,770.00 0.32% 453.34
2023 4,485,000.00 -0- 4,485,000.00 1,839,807,070.00 0.24% 34313
2024 2,895,000.00 -0- 2,995,000.00 1,841,624,420.00 0.16% 225.31
Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

a See Exhibit NJ J-6 for property tax data.
b Population data can be found in Exhibif NJ J-14,
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

RATIOS OF OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023

EXHIBIT "J-12"

UNAUDITED
Estimated Estimated Share
Percentage of Overlapping

Governmental Unit Debt Outstanding Applicable * Debt
Debt repaid with properly taxes

Berkeley Heights Township 3 57,352,548 100.00% § 57,352,548
Other debt

Union County 526,861,768 3.99% 21,021,785
Subtotal, overiapping debt 78,374,332
Berkeley Heights School District Direct Debt 2,885,000 100.00% 2,985,000

Total direct and overlapping debt

Sources: Township Chief Financial Officer and County Treasurer's Office

8 _ 81369332

Note:  Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and
businesses of Berkeley Heights. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-term
the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that
every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping payment.

a For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property v
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within the

district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxabie value.
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EXHIBIT "J-14"

TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

UNAUDITED
Year Ended Per Capita
December 31 Unemployment Rate Income Population
2014 3.7% 57,306 13,351
2015 3.7% 60,080 13,359
2016 3.5% 61,808 13,441
2017 3.1% 81,624 13,430
2018 2.9% 64,413 13,468
2019 2.5% 68,262 13,371
2020 6.4% 70,865 13,313
2021 4.8% 72,543 13,169
2022 2.6% 77,007 13,071
2023 3.2% 76,616 13,263

Source: N.J. Department of Labor
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

INSURANCE SCHEDULE
JUNE 30 2024
UNAUDITED
LIMITS
Blanket Building and Contents
Boiler & Machinery $ 146,353,356
Fiood - Qutside 100 Year Flood Zone 1,000,000

Flood - Inside 100 Year Flood Zone

EXHIBIT "J-20"
SHEET #1

DEDUCTIBLE
1,000

25,000

*Please note that 3-65 Fairfax Drive, Berkeley Heights NJ is limited to $250,000 with a $25,0000 deductible.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY
Environmental Impairment Liability (Group Aggregate 1,000,000
Each Impairment Aggregate limit per insured:

GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGES

Each Occurrence Limit 1,000,000
Personal and Advertising Injury Limit 1,000,000
General Aggregate Limit 3,000,000
Products/Completed Operations, Aggregate Limit 3,000,000
Damage to Premises Rented to You 1,000,000
Medical Expense Limit 10,000
AUTOMOBILE

Liability : 1,000,000
Uninsured/Underinsured Motorists 1,000,000

Comprehensive and Collision Deductibles

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY POLICY

School Board Legal Liability Limit 1,000,000
Employment Related Practices Limit 4,000,000
CRIME

Emplovee Dishonesty-per employee 100,000
Forgery & Alteration 100,000
STATUTORY BONDS

Public Official Bond -Bus Admn/Treasurer 300,000
UMBRELLA LIABILITY

Limit of Liability 15,000,000
EXCESS UMBRELLA

NJ Unshared Excess Liability 20,000,000
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

Disability Insurance-Athletic
Student Accident Full Excess Plan
Volunteer Accident Full Excess Plan

Cyber Liability

Privacy Liability

t.egal & Regulatory Costs Coverage
Security & Forensic Costs Coverage
Management Liability
Multimedia Liability - Defamation
Cyber Extortion
Business Income and Extra Expense
PCI Fines, Penalties & Assessments

Workers Compensation

Self insured Retention

Bi By Accident-Each Accident
Bl by Disease-Each Employee
Bl by Disease - Policy Limit

INSURANCE SCHEDULE

JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

* Denotes insurance representative has reviewed this information
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1,000,000

5,000,600

500,000

1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,060
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

500,000
500,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

EXHIBIT "J-20"
SHEET #2

15,000
15,600
15,000
15,000
15,000
15,000
15,000
15,000
15,000
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EXHIBIT "K-1"

SuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
County of Union

Berkeley Heights, New Jersey 07922

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund of the
Township of Berkeley Heights School District, in the County of Union, State of New Jersey (the
"District") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated February 7, 2025.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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SurLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY LLC

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. However,
we noted instances of noncompliance that we have reported to the District in a separate Auditor's
Management Report on Administrative Finding — Finance and Compliance dated February 7,
2025.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other

purpose.
J
CERTIFIED %UBLICIACCmTANTS
m WM

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

February 7, 2025
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EXHIBIT "K-2"

SUPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122

Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535
E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSITANCE PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB
CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorabie President and Members

of the Board of Education

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
County of Union

Township of Berkeley Heights, New Jersey 07922

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited Township of Berkeley Heights School District, County of Union, State
of New Jersey (the “District”) compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as
subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey OMB State Grant
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District’'s major
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. The District's major federal and
state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

in our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)
and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement. Our responsibilities under those
standards, Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.
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SuprLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY LLC

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program. Our audit does not provide a
legal determination of the District's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above,

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with
the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to the District’s federal and state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonabile assurance about whether material noncompliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on the District's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, the Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement
will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resuiting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District's
compliance with the requirements of each major federal or state program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance
Supplement, we:

+ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

« ldentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the District's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

« Obtain an understanding of the District’s internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
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SvurLiE, CrLooNey & COMPANY LLC

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internai control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on internai Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on
the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance
Supplement. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

JM%\ J‘O)rv\/

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Kkt 1y AN

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

February 7, 2025
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NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

EXHIBIT “K-5"
Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2024

GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance include federal and state activity of the Board of Education,
Berkeley Heights School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1 to
the Board's basic financial statements. All federal and state awards received
directly from the federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state
financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financials assistance.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the
exceptions of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented
using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described
in Note 1 of the District's basic financial statements. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Uniform
Guidance, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. The
District has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as
altlowed under the Uniform Guidance.

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue
fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedule (RSI) are
presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-
regulated legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting,
revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have
been made.

The General fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified
accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the deferred state
aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S A
18A:22-44.2. For GAAP accounting purposes, those paymenis are not
recognized until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and
recording of the state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue
fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting
budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also
recognizes the related revenue, whereas GAAP basis does not.
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NOTE 3:

EXHIBIT "K-5"
Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2024

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The net adjustment o reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is
($40,354.00) for the general fund. The net adjustment to reconcile from the
budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is ($32,805.00) for the special revenue fund.
See the notes to the required supplementary information for a reconciliation of
the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general
and special revenue funds. Federal awards and state financial assistance
revenues are reported in the Board’s basic financial statements on a GAAP basis
as follows:

Federal State Total

General Fund $17,914,452.20 $17,914,452.20
Special Revenue Fund $889,362.10 46,358.86 935,720.96
Debt Service Fund 573,531.00 573,631.00

GAAP Adjustment (18,164.00) 91,323.00 73,159.00
Total Awards &
Financial Assistance $871,198.10 $18,625,665.06 $19,496,863.16

NOTE 4:

NOTE 5:

RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts
reported in the related federal and state financial reports.

OTHER

The amount reported as TPAF pension contributions, post-retirement medical
benefits and long-term disability insurance represents the amount paid by the
state on behalf of the district for the year ended June 30, 2024. TPAF Social
Security contributions represent the amount reimbursed by the state for the
employer’s share of Social Security contributions for TPAF members for the year
ended June 30, 2024,
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Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Union County, New Jersey

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

Section | — Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

(1) Type of Auditor’s Report Issued:
(2) internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
(a) Material weakness(es) identified?

{b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

(3) Noncompliance material to the basic financial
statements noted during the audit?

Federal Program(s)
(1) Internal Control Over Major Federal Programs:
(a) Material weaknesses identified?

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

(2) Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major federal
program(s)?

(3) Any audit findings disclosed that are required 1o be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance?

(4) Identification of Major Federal Program(s):

AL
Program Number
Special Education Cluster
.D.E.A. Part B Basic 84.027
.D.E.A. Part B Preschool 84173
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Unmodified

No

No

No

No

No

Unmaodified

No

FAIN
Number

S027A200100
S173A200114



Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Union County, New Jersey

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results (Continued)

®)

(©)

Program Threshold Determination:
Type A Federal Program Threshold > $750,000.00
Type B Federal Program Threshold <= $750,000.00

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular Uniform

Guidance?

State Program(s)

(1)

2)

€)

(4)

®)

Internal Controf Over Major State Programs:
{a) Material weakness(es) identified?

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major state
program(s)?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with N.J. OMB Circular 15-087

Identification of Major State Program(s):

Grant
Program Number
State Aid Cluster:
Special Education Aid 485-034-5120-089
Security Aid 495-034-5120-084
Extraordinary Aid 100-034-5120-473

Program Threshold Determination:
Type A State Program Threshold > $750,000.00
Type B State Program Threshold <= $750,000.00

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular 15-087
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Yes

No

No

Unmodified

No

Yes



EXHIBIT “K-8"
Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Union County, New Jersey

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

Section H — Financial Statement Audit ~ Reported Findings Under Government Auditing
Standards

Internal Control Findings — None Reported

Compliance Findings — None Reported

Section If -~ Findings and Questioned Costs Relative to Major Federal and Siate
Programs

Federal Programs ~ None Reported

State Programs — None Reported
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EXHIBIT "K-7"
Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Union County, New Jersey

Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Not Applicable
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